A Briefer School History

In 1884, Philadelphia was a booming center of commerce. As in other cities around the world, its railroad lines made it feasible to create commuter suburbs. Railroads themselves were instrumental in developing and promoting these suburbs.  So it was in 1884. The Pennsylvania Railroad, a transportation giant, committed itself to develop land along the rail spur west of the city. The Pennsylvania Railroad forced its executives to move to the new suburbs in the interests of ensuring the success of their investment Where would families moving to these developing towns and villages send their sons for an education?  Alexander Cassatt, president of the railroad, and his wife were instrumental in imploring the faculty of Haverford College to begin a school. 

The Haverford College Grammar School was begun in September 1884, with 25 students.  Charles Crosman served as the first named school head -- Haverford College's Dean Isaac Sharpless served as a stand-in for the first few years -- overseeing the school's 1886 move to the newly constructed "Merion Cottage," which still exists on Railroad Avenue, in the corner of the Haverford College campus. In 1897 Crosman himself bought the current campus, which was the estate of Samuel H. Austin, and then in this role as the School's proprietor, he built by 1903 what would eventually be named Wilson Hall, which remains, as the Upper School, the cornerstone of the campus. The School by 1903 had been renamed The Haverford School. 

The School grew and thrived with the suburbs.  In 1912 Charles Crosman retirred as Headmaster after 28 years; a gifted schoolmaster, he was nonetheless not a financier. He was overburdened by mortgages, and from the time of his retirement,which followed a financial restructuring, the School has been a non-profit organization. Under Headmaster Edwin M. "Buck" Wilson, the School gained the stature and stability that it enjoys today. Wilson, who joined the Schol in 1895, served as head from 1912 to 1937. In 1916, the School nearly folded because of the financial obligations. Wilson was advised by many Trustees just to let the School go, but using his own considerable personal equity, not to mention his stubbornness and fund-raising zeal, he pulled the School through its darkest moments. An imposing, "flinty" man (only his wife dared call him "Edwin"), his leadership established the School cultture. His formal, stoic manner, his dedication to academics, his rapport with boys, his belief in the value of sports, his personified traits of loyalty and hard work, his long tenure at Haverford -- all of this was essential to establishing the School's characteristic flavor.

Cornelius Boocock, groomed as the hare apparent, succeeded Wilson as Headmaster in 1937. When he went to war as a Navy officer in 1942, Leslie R. Severinghaus replaced him as acting head and was named Haverford's fourth Headmaster formally in 1945.  Dr. Severinghaus served as Headmaster until 1966. The son of Presbyterian missionaries in China, Les was a charismatic, energetic leader of the School.  Nicknamed "Buddha" by the students (never to his face), Severinghaus was a humorous, expressive, and impressive person. A devoutly moral maan, Severinghaus was a firm believer in what is now called "diversity." He gained considerable foundation support for what was at the time a very proggressive and daring program of financial support for minority students. 

Davis R. Parker, Headmaster of Milwaukee's University School, was named to succeed Severinghaus in 1966. Parker continued the tradition of the imposing, formal Headmaster; he took pride in the traditional Haverford regimen of acaddemic rigor, a no-frillsstyle, and no-nonsense discipline, which was counter to the direction of other schools in the late 1960's. 

Davis Parker retired in 1987, after 21 years. He was replaced by W. Boulton Dixon '61, Haverford's sixth Headmaster and its first alumnus to serve in that capacity. Headmaster of the all-boys' Columbus Academy and his Haverford class's Key Man, "Bo" Dixon's warm, informal manner was a clear break with the past. 

Following Dixon's departure in 1992, Joseph P. Healey, Ph.D., for 10 years Dean of Hobart College, was selected to replace him beginning in 1992-93. During his time as Headmaster, We have become international leaders in the efort to understand boys and their educational issues. Our long-standing academic rigor has been joined by a focused effort to provide students with appropriate support. 

When Joe Healey left in 1998 to become President of Ethical Culture and Fieldston Schools in New York City, the school found his successor in Joseph T. Cox, Ph.D. as a member of the English faculty at West Point. Combining a remarkable record as a leader in the military, as well as accomplishments as a poet and scholar, Joe is leading the School's ongoing progress.  Joe feels the need to redoubble our efforts to teach the values of respect and ethical behavior within the School, and he continues our tradition of pursuing, and speaking about, the best interests of boys.  

